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The research conducted by ATRA members and funded by the American Therapeutic Recreation Foundation should be aimed at effectiveness of recreational therapy interventions and promoting the quality of recreational therapy education and should examine:
· Effectiveness of specific recreational therapy interventions and outcomes of practice for the target areas of:
1) depression

2) pain
3) anxiety
4) functional mobility

5) obesity and active lifestyles. 

These target areas are listed in priority order from data analyzed from the survey that was completed of 35 ATRA members over the months of January – April 2004. Demographic data on the respondents is included in Appendix A.
In the document that follows the Research Agenda subcommittee has identified and prioritized six research areas that should be addressed and has developed research questions to help students, practitioners, and educators:

General Intervention area: What are the optimal characteristics of an intervention to achieve a desired effect or outcome (including change in function, level of satisfaction, and cost analysis?) 

Dosing area: What are the optimal frequency, intensity and duration of a recreational therapy intervention to achieve a desired effect or outcome for a given diagnosis? 

Timing area: Are there optimal time periods for recreational therapy interventions that influence pathology, impairment, functional limitation and disability? 

Co-treatments area: What is the relative effectiveness of two or more interventions or two or more disciplines working together for a particular patient diagnostic classification? 

Interactions area: Are there factors that interact with recreational therapy interventions, and how do they interact to affect patient outcomes and clinical decision-making? 

RT preparation area: Do recreational therapists’ knowledge, attitude, culture, understanding, and expectations affect the outcome of recreational therapy interventions, and, if so, how?
Other areas of clinical and professional importance include:

· Reliability and validity of assessment tools used by recreational therapists in research studies and in recreational therapy practice.
· Development of practice guidelines and technological innovations to assist recreational therapists in all areas of practice.
· Quality of care and promotion of the well being of persons with disabilities and chronic conditions across the life span. 
· Outcomes of prevention and intervention programs, including new approaches or combinations of approaches for intervention. 
· Relationship between context of intervention and its outcome. 
· Professional education of recreational therapists and the professional socialization process.
· Innovation in recreational therapy education and professional development at all levels to ensure currency with the changing environments in health care and education and with student and professional practice needs.

· Research to further the science of clinical recreational therapy, to influence current and emerging health care trends, and to advance the profession.

In summary, ATRA’s research agenda is concerned with examining the links between recreational therapy practice and education and the effects of recreational therapy in the real world of practice and leads to evidenced-based practice. The evidence based concept is highly favored by health care organizations because of its ability to 1) improve quality of care and services, 2) have fewer variations in practice, 3) provide cost savings that flow from appropriate intervention use, and 4) improve healthcare outcomes in general. 

This agenda is also concerned with identifying standards by which certified therapeutic recreation specialists can select and prescribe scientifically tested interventions to bring credibility to the practice of recreational therapy.  Ultimately, the research activities of ATRA members should serve to support ATRA’s mission to promote the development of outstanding, ethical practitioners and scholars who are prepared to respond to society's ever-changing healthcare needs, and thereby improve the quality and consistency of recreational therapy practice and research.

The ATRA Research Agenda Committee has decided the most appropriate way to present the agenda is through actual research questions that need to be answered in each of the SIX TARGET AREAS. The questions are framed so that interventions and particular problem areas need to be inserted into the stem provided. This approach will assist practitioners and students, as well as experienced educators and researchers move the profession forward in a direct manner. The ATRA Research Committee hopes that recreational therapy educators will teach about this research agenda and advocate for student research using the questions listed. 
GENERAL INTERVENTION AREA (Do our interventions improve function?)

WHAT ARE THE OPTIMAL CHARACTERISTICS OF AN INTERVENTION TO ACHIEVE A DESIRED EFFECT OR OUTCOME (FUNCTION, SATISFACTION, AND COST) FOR GIVEN DIAGNOSES? (Fill in the intervention for the particular research proposed)

· What is the effectiveness of a specific recreational therapy intervention on a specific patient problem?
· What is the effectiveness of a specific relaxation technique for reducing anxiety and (or) pain and improving functional outcomes in patients with dementia, chronic disabilities, mental health diagnoses? 

· What is the effectiveness of leisure education on levels of self-efficacy of rehabilitation patients (or mental health clients)? What is the impact of leisure education on the use of unstructured time for patients with chronic illnesses?

· Are recreational therapy exercise techniques effective in the treatment of impairments and functional limitations?  Which ones? Are aquatics techniques and water based interventions effective in the treatment of impairments and functional limitations? Which ones?

· What is the effect of recreational therapy exercise programs (duration, intensity and type) on community re-integration for various types of rehabilitation patients? 

· Can recreational therapy interventions improve social function for patients with depression or anxiety? Or reduce social isolation? 

· Can cognitive based interventions improve memory, self-efficacy, and health behaviors (for persons with mild cognitive impairment, moderate cognitive impairment, severe cognitive impairment due to______)?

· What is an effective recreational therapy approach to the prevention of weight gain and obesity at different life stages? It was suggested that we:
· Conduct intervention studies that will lead to development of more effective programs for weight loss and maintenance.

· Conduct intervention studies that will lead to the development of programs targeting the special needs of different subgroups of the obese population.

· Conduct research on the relationship between psychological factors and obesity.

· What are the effects of physically active recreation therapy sessions on depression, anxiety, obesity, and physiological and psychological responses to stress?

· What benefits do recreational therapy aquatic programs (properties of water including buoyancy effects, weight bearing, resistance loading, muscle relaxation and tonal reduction, balance with water turbulence and water density support, etc.) provide for clients with?

· CVA, TBI, SCI return 

· Parkinson’s Disease balance problems

· Neurological return 

· Pediatric sensory adjustment

DOSING AREA (How much RT is needed to cause a change?)

WHAT ARE THE OPTIMAL FREQUENCY, INTENSITY AND DURATIONS OF AN INTERVENTION TO ACHIEVE A DESIRED EFFECT OR OUTCOME FOR A GIVEN DIAGNOSIS? 

· What recreational therapy interventions designed to improve movement strategies in the community (community reintegration) can be used for patients with Parkinson’s disease, Post-stroke, Post-hip fracture, TBI, Spinal Cord Injury and what is the optimal duration of the intervention? 

· What recreational therapy interventions designed to decrease pain can be used for patients with upper extremity syndromes [or lower extremity syndromes}, and what is the optimal duration? 

· What are the conditions of repetition and practice (whole/part, intermittent/continuous, attended/unattended, number of trials per day) that optimize function in persons with neuromuscular dysfunction [sports related injuries, work related injuries, deconditioning, balance and ambulation dysfunction, polyarthritis, pain syndromes]?

· What is the duration and intensity of recreational therapy needed for a reduction in depression symptoms? Anxiety symptoms? Stress symptoms? What type of follow up is needed to maintain the improvements? 
TIMING OF INTERVENTIONS (When is the right time for RT to take place?)

Are there optimal time periods for recreational therapy interventions that influence pathology, impairment, functional limitation and disability? 

· Are there optimal time periods for interventions that influence pathology, impairment, functional limitation, and disability in patients in whom multiple episodes of care are expected over the life span? For example, will recreational therapy interventions in early stage dementia impact of use of later stage services?
· Are there changes to behavior and the environment that can be used to enhance function and prevent institutional placement, and, if so, what is the optimal pattern of use to achieve a therapeutic outcome? 
· Does {pre-operative} {immediate post-operative} recreation therapy intervention improve the rate of recovery of function in pediatric patients [adult or older adult patients] with __________, and, if so, how? 
· Does immediate post-operative recreational therapy intervention affect the rate of recovery of function in patients following orthopedic surgery, and, if so, how? 
· Can weight training be used to improve physiological and functional outcomes in frail elders?{individuals with other chronic disabilities?} If yes, can the process of interval training be standardized with frail elders? What is the impact on body mass?
· Are outcomes of recreational therapy treatment following TBI or spinal cord injury using _______________ improved by early assessment and staged interventions? 
CO-TREATMENT AREA (What combinations with RT interventions are most effective?)

What is the relative effectiveness of two or more interventions for a particular patient diagnostic classification? 

· What is the optimal combination of interventions (or interventionists) to achieve desired patient outcomes? 
· Does the coordination of exercise and walking interventions affect patient outcomes (falls, community mobility, self-efficacy) and, if so, what is the optimal pattern of intervention? 
· Does the coordination of physical activity (psychosocial activity) and pharmacological interventions affect patient depression treatment outcomes and, if so, what is the optimal pattern of intervention? [i.e. wheelchair biking and Zoloft vs. wheelchair biking alone]
· What are the interactions between recreational therapy interventions and pharmacological interventions for treatment of behaviors (weight loss, social anxiety, depression, pain)? 
· What is the optimal resource schedule and utilization to achieve a desired effect or outcome for a given diagnosis? 
· What are the factors that affect cost for recreational therapy services within specific diagnostic groups? 
INTERACTIONS AREA (What things interact with our therapy?)

Are there factors that interact with recreational therapy interventions, and how do they interact to affect patient Outcomes and clinical decision making? 

· Which, if any, devices and equipment (assistive, adaptive, orthotics, protective, supportive or prosthetic) can be used by recreational therapists to enhance function and prevent social isolation/boredom, and, if so, what is the pattern of use to achieve a therapeutic outcome? 

· Do changes to behavior and the environment reduce the incidence of falls and injury? 

· Are there cultural factors that impact on the effectiveness of an intervention? Is so what are they?

· Are there family factors that impact on the effectiveness of an intervention? Is so what are they?
RT PREPARATION AREA (Impact of education and socialization of our students)

Do recreational therapists’ knowledge, attitudes, culture, understanding, and expectations affect the outcome of recreational therapy interventions, and, if so, how? 

· Is there a difference in patient outcomes and costs dependent upon whether services for a given diagnostic condition are provided by recreational therapists or others? 

· How have changes resulting from health care reorganization affected the quality of recreational therapy services, access to recreational therapy services, patient satisfaction, staff productivity, staff longevity, and professional development? 

· How does the requirement of referral before treatment can begin affect whether patients have access to and are likely to utilize recreational therapy services? 

· What factors predict supply, demand and need for recreational therapy services? 
· What is the effect of the availability, cost, and payment source of recreational therapy services on patient outcomes? 

· What are the factors that determine whether patients have access to and are likely to utilize recreational therapy services? 

Resources for ATRA members interested in research and evidence based practice:

AHRQ - Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality 
http://www.ahrq.gov 

CDC- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
http://www.cdc.gov 

HRSA- Health Resources and Services Administration 
http://www.hrsa.dhhs.gov 

NCMRR- National Center for Medical Rehabilitation Research (NCMRR is a component of NICHD) 
http://www.nichd.nih.gov/about/NCMRR/ 

NIAMS- National Institute of Arthritis and Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases 
http://www.nih.gov/niams 

NICHD- National Institute of Child Health and Human Development 
http://www.nichd.nih.gov/ 

Child Care Bureau
http://www.acf.dhhs.gov/programs/ccb
Insure Kids Now
http://www.insurekidsnow.gov/
and National toll free number: 1-877-Kids-Now

Child Welfare League of America
http://www.cwla.org/
Office of Special Education Programs (OSEP)
http://www.ed.gov/offices/OSERS/OSEP/index.html
OSEP Technical Assistance Center on Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports
http://www.pbis.org
Center for Effective Collaboration and Practice
http://www.air.org/cecp/
National Center on Education, Disability, and Juvenile Justice
http://www.edjj.org
Office of Safe and Drug-Free Schools
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osdfs/index.html
NIDRR- National Institute on Disability and Rehabilitation Research (Office of Special Education and Rehabilitation Services, Dept of Education) 
http://www.ed.gov/offices/OSERS/NIDRR 

NIH- National Institutes of Health  (managed by the OER Office of Extramural Research) http://www.nih.gov 

NIOSH- National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health http://www.cdc.gov/niosh/homepage.html  

ALSA - Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis Association - http://www.alsa.org/research/abstract.cfm
Alzheimer’s Association  http://www.alz.org 

ATRA Foundation http://www.atra-tr.org (Foundation)

ATRA Treatment Networks (www.atra-tr.org Treatment Networks)

Gerontological Nursing Interventions Research Center (GNIRC)

http://www.nursing.uiowa.edu/centers/gnirc
Florida Gulf Coast University Center for Positive Aging www.fgcu.edu/cfpa
Appendix A – Demographics of Respondents

Second Round Sample=35 ATRA members

Mean number years experience in the field: 14.6 years


       





 N    
  %
Level of education: 

Bachelors      
 18   
52%       


               

Masters           
 12   
20%





Ed.D or PhD.          9 
 28%

NCTRC certification # 100% stated they were CTRSs

       Professional Organizations you belong to: 
ATRA 

         35  
100%

                                                                            
ATRA and a Chapter    24

  68% 

    





ATRA and NTRS         13

  37%

Ethnicity: 

African American/Non-Hispanic

 2       6%

Hispanic


                             2        6%

Asian or Pacific Islander


 1        3%

White/Non-Hispanic


29       82%


Bi-racial or Bi-ethnic


 1         3%

 Specialization or Practice area: 


     
University(teaching) 

7
20%

Geriatrics/LTC       

6
17%
Rehab/Aquatics
 

5           
14%
Mental health


5
14%

Peds/At-risk youth/schools
2
  6%

Hospital/Oncology

2
  6%

Substance abuse                 
1              3%

MRDD


1
   3%

General or multiple areas
6
 17%



 Sex: 
Male = 7     20% Female=28   80%

Area you live in: 

Urban         57%

Suburban    26%

Rural          17%

Describe the clients you serve:  University students, rehab center clients: post stroke, TBI, post fracture, SCI; Community based individuals, Hospitalized individuals, Nursing home and dementia care clients, Mental Health Centers & Substance Abuse Centers, Group Home/Assisted Living. 

